Planning Commission Meeting

Location: Novato City Hall, 901 Sherman Avenue

THE CITY OF

NOVATO March 19, 2018

CALIFORNTITA

922 Machin Present: Curtis Havel, Chair
Novato, CA 94945 Justin Derby, Vice Chair
415/899-8900 Dan D
FAX 415/899-8213 an Dawson
WWW.Nnovato.org David Gabriel
Jay Strauss

l‘;ayl‘i‘F . Peter Tiernan

osh Fryday .
Mayor Pro Tem Susan Wernick

Pam Drew
Councilmembers Absent:

Denise Athas

Ea,t E}i‘l““d Staff Present: Bob Brown, Community Development Director

e Tuean Steve Marshall, Planning Manager

City Manager Hans Grunt, Senior Planner

Regan M. Candelario
CALL TO ORDER /PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE / ROLL CALL

APPROVAL OF FINAL AGENDA:

Motion/Second: Tiernan/Derby to approve final agenda. Motion passed 7-0
(Ayes: Havel, Derby, Dawson, Tiernan, Gabriel, Strauss, and Wernick).

PUBLIC COMMENT:

Marc Medoff - a resident of Mirabella Avenue commented on safety concerns
regarding the narrow street width and lack of sidewalks in the Mirabella
neighborhood. He noted people have to walk in the street. He is concerned
what will happen if the First and Grant project is developed. The City needs
to address what happens on Mirabella. Signatures have been collected from
residents — something has to be done before someone is hurt. Variance puts
traffic on the street — offer resident parking permits.

Chairman Havel acknowledged receipt of a letter submitted by Mr. Medoff.

03pm1918 1



CONSENT CALENDAR:

1. APPROVAL OF PC MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 12, 2018 (CH,JD,DG,JS,PT,SW)
Motion/Second: Wernick/Derby to approve minutes. Motion passed 6-0-1
(Ayes: Havel, Derby, Tiernan, Gabriel, Strauss, and Wernick; Nays: None; Abstain:
Dawson).

2. APPROVAL OF PC MINUTES OF MARCH 5, 2018 (CH,DD,JD,RJ,JS,PT,SW)

Motion/Second: Derby/Dawson to approve minutes. Motion passed 7-0 (Ayes: Havel,
Derby, Dawson, Tiernan, Gabriel, Strauss, and Wernick).

CONTINUED ITEMS: None

NEW ITEMS: None
GENERAL BUSINESS:

3. 2017 ANNUAL HOUSING ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT (HG)

Receive and submit the 2017 Annual Housing Element, (Chapter I1I of the City’s General
Plan) Progress Report to the City Council for filing with the State Department of Housing
and Community Development (HCD) and the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research
(OPR).

Senior Planner Grunt presented the annual housing report.

Commissioner Strauss inquired about approved housing projects and those currently under
consideration.

Senior Planner Grunt listed a number of approved and pending projects.

Commissioner Derby inquired about income levels for affordable housing and meeting the
City’s RHNA assignment.

Senior Planner Grunt explained income requirements and noted a preference for inclusionary
affordable housing units, but in-lieu fees can be leveraged with a non-profit developer to
produce affordable housing.

Commissioner Gabriel asked about projects in the pipeline with affordable units.

Senior Planner Grunt noted those projects with inclusionary affordable units.

Commissioner Tiernan asked about the conversion of apartments to condominiums.

03pm1918 2



Senior Planner Grunt explained the city uses a vacancy rate to determine when it is appropriate to
allow apartments to convert to condominiums.

Commissioner Tiernan asked about connection fees for utilities associated with accessory and
junior accessory dwelling units — How do we encourage more of these types of units?

Community Development Director Brown stated the utility districts had reduced their connections
fees for such units and state law has subsequently eliminated such fees in certain instances.

Commissioner Derby asked what happens if the city does not reach its housing numbers.

Community Development Director Brown noted the city is not compelled to see units produced.
However, there is pending legislation that could roll-over unmet units to the next housing element
cycle. As a result, communities might need to plan for more units.

Commissioner Strauss commented that senior housing is being proposed because its politically
palatable in Novato. However, there is a dearth of market rate units for people wishing to downsize
from a traditional single-family home. This is an issue of vitality for the community — the older
you get, the less you spend in a downtown.

Commissioner Wernick commented that more single-story units need to be produced — could be
part of affordability component.

Community Development Director Brown commented that multi-story development is driven by
the price of land. Noted some communities, like Cotati, require a certain number of single-story
units.

Commissioner Derby referenced Pleasanton requiring smaller homes. Perhaps mandate smaller
units, but offer density allowances — maybe a sliding scale where smaller units gets more density.
He commented that senior housing is less threatening and parking ratios could be revised lower
for such units.

The public comment period was opened. No members of the public wished to address the
Planning Commission.

Commissioner Tiernan agrees there is a crisis with the lack of affordable housing. He noted there
has been success in Novato with non-profits and religious groups. How do we replicate this?
Encouraged accessory dwelling units and bring unpermitted units up to code and get them to be
part of the counted housing stock.

Commissioner Gabriel states if we are not proactive we’ll end-up being reactive on housing. Need
to look at the cost of accessory dwelling units.

Commissioner Strauss would like to see multi-level market rate housing along transit corridors.

03pm1918 3



Community Development Director Brown noted there may be an opportunity to redevelop
Fireman’s Fund with residences near transit.

4. DOWNTOWN PARKING STUDY (SM/BB)

Conduct a public meeting to consider and provide comments to the City Council regarding
the findings and recommendations contained in the Downtown Novato Parking Study,
prepared by Walker Parking, and a policy white paper prepared by the Community
Development Department.

Planning Manager Marshall presented the Downtown Parking Study.

Commissioner Strauss noted that parking stalls always seem to be available within a block of
Grant Avenue. He suggested creating a permit parking program for downtown employees.

Community Development Director Brown commented on the concept of unbundled parking
involving offering employees a monthly stipend to not park in downtown. He noted it is tough to
monitor such a program.

Commissioner Wernick referred to an employee parking program implemented in Mill Valley.
As a former employee of downtown businesses she noted employees parking in unauthorized
locations was a problem. She felt Scown Lane had potential to provide additional parking. Need
to encourage use of the private parking areas we have now. Noted that parking on Mirabella
Avenue could be an issue.

Community Development Director Brown said parking permit programs have costs and
management requirements that come with trade-offs.

Commissioner Dawson noted seeing merchants parking in public parking stalls and questioned
whether proper time-limit turnover was occurring recognizing some employees/merchants may
be simply moving their vehicle a block-over.

The public comment period was opened.

Marlene McCabe - A downtown property owner commented on the addition of a dining area
within the parking stalls on Grant Avenue. She expressed her opposition to the decision to install
the dining area. How do you take parking away from tax payers?

Marc Medoff — wants some communication that parking issue is being addressed with Pini project.
He noted the parking waiver requested by the Pini project. He said parking for the project will get
pushed into Mirabella. Will you deny parking waiver?

The public comment period was closed.
Chair Havel acknowledged letter with signatures from residents of Mirabella Avenue.

Community Development Director Brown noted the First and Grant (Pini) project was not on the
agenda. He noted the use, design, and parking waiver will be considered at one time. Mirabella
will be examined. He noted the Finnegan’s parklette was not handled by the Community
Development Department. The parklette was approved by the Public Works Department for a trial
period.

03pm1918 4



Chair Havel asked is the Finnegan’s encroachment could be removed?
Community Development Director Brown said it could be removed.
Commissioner Strauss supported staff’s recommendations.

Commissioner Wernick commented on Industrial Way and Mirabella Avenue needing attention.
The First and Grant project could be an economic enhancement — hoping to see a parking strategy.
Parking issues in downtown will become exacerbated with so many property owners and
merchants not using private parking areas. How do we get private property owners to make
improvements? Overall, she likes the recommendations of staff and we’re on a good path. Would
like an annual report of what is and is not working with respect to parking.

Commissioner Derby understands concerns about parking waiver. He doesn’t want parking to
become a pinch point as downtown continues to grow. Perhaps turn Mirabella into a one-way
street and consider other improvements to discourage parking in the neighborhood.

Community Development Director Brown said staff is looking at micro-opportunities for
additional parking — diagonal parking on First Street, perhaps one-way on Industrial.

Commissioner Tiernan stated he endorses the recommendations made by staff. He suggested
communicating with merchants about parking opportunities, perhaps create a guide to get people
to available parking.

Commissioner Dawson commented that auto repair use of public parking stalls is not appropriate.
Design solutions could address speeding on Mirabella. Perhaps create a parking district. Supports
staff’s recommendations.

Commissioner Gabriel — Is there the ability to reserve spaces for Zip Cars and the like? Car
sharing would reduce parking demand in downtown. Supports staff’s recommendations.

Commissioner Havel agrees with his colleagues and staff’s reccommendations. He encouraged the
public to provide solutions.

UPCOMING AGENDAS AND QUORUMS:

Planning Manager Marshall noted the Commission’s tentative schedule.

ADJOURNMENT:

Commissioner Wernick move to adjourn the Planning Commission’s meeting in memory of Ryan
Zirkle. Mr. Zirkle grew-up and lived in Novato and served the community as a deputy sheriff for
the Marin County Sheriff’s Office.

Meeting adjourned at 8:50 PM.

03pm1918 5



